Council, Monday, 1st August, 2016
SUMMONS AND AGENDA

Civic Offices
St Nicholas Way
Sutton
Surrey
SM1 1EA
Date 22 July 2016
To:

All Councillors of the London Borough of Sutton

Dear Councillor,
You are hereby summoned to attend a Meeting of the COUNCIL of the LONDON
BOROUGH OF SUTTON to be held in the CIVIC OFFICES, SUTTON on Monday, 1st
August, 2016 at 7.00 pm for the transaction of the business stated on the agenda
below.
Yours sincerely

Strategic Director of Resources on behalf of the Chief Executive

AGENDA
1.

MAYOR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

2.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Councillors to declare any personal or prejudicial interests that they have on
matters to be discussed at this evening’s Council meeting.

3.

REQUISTION

a)

Award of Preferred bidder status for Waste Collection and related Environment
Services (Pages 1 - 58)
Council are asked to consider a requisition relating to a decision made by the
Environment and Neighbourhood Committee at a meeting held on 27 June
2016.

1

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 1

Agenda Item 3a

Report to:

Council

Report title:

Requisition Report

Report from:

Jessica Crowe, Monitoring Officer

Ward/Areas affected:

Borough wide

Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:
Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):
Corporate Plan Priorities:

The Mayor, Cllr Richard Clifton

Open/Exempt:

Open

Signed:

Date:

1 August 2016

Alexa Coates, Head of Committee and Management Support
020 8770 5094
● An Open Council
● A Fair Council

Date:

22 July 2016

1.

Summary

1.1

In accordance with committee procedure rule 23.4 Requisitions, Full Council is asked to
consider a requisition relating to decisions made by the Environment and Neighbourhood
Committee on 27 June 2016.

2.

Recommendations

Council is recommended to:
2.1

consider the requisition relating to item 8, Award of Preferred Bidder status for Waste Collection
and related Environment Services, recommendations 2.1, 2.3 and 2.5 considered by the
Environment and Neighbourhood Committee on 27 June 2016.

3.

Background

3.1

The text of the requisition is set out below:
“Recommendation 2.5 fundamentally changes a key front line council service, yet is described
merely as ‘noting’ the change. There has been no consultation with residents. On such a key
service, the consultation should feed into the decision making process, it shouldn’t be a bolton to sell a pre-made decision to the public. Recommendations 2.1 and 2.3 enable this
change.

Agenda Item 3a

Page 2

We are also concerned that with the United Kingdom due to leave the European Union and
EU regulations being so prominent in the refuse and recylcling industry, is it wise to enter an 8
year contract when regulatory environment may be substantially different in 2 or 3 years?
Outcome sought: postpone the decision in order to consult properly with residents, take their
feedback fully into account in the decision-making process, and for the waste industry to begin
to understand its future regulatory environment.”
4.

Issues

4.1

The process for considering requisitions is for the relevant chair to move the adoption of the
minute of the decisions that have been requisitioned, which all members thus have an
opportunity to debate and vote upon. The resolutions members are considering are: item 8
resolutions 2.1, 2.3 and 2.5 as set out at Appendix A of this report.

5.

Options Considered

5.1

Full Council can agree the resolutions made by the Environment and Neighbourhood
Committee or take the action requested by the Councillors requisitioning the decision.
Comments – Environment, Neighbourhood and Regeneration Directorate

5.2

The South London Waste Partnership (SLWP) has a proven record of providing cost-effective
waste management services through the procurement of waste disposal, recycling and
Household Reuse and Recycling Centre contracts over the past 13 years.

5.3

Following these successes the partners (Sutton, Kingston, Croydon and Merton) explored
opportunities for the future delivery of a range of high quality environmental services. This
assessed the merits of procuring services in partnership, as opposed to procuring alone, or
retaining existing arrangements. This suggested savings in the region of 10% from procuring
jointly, with the potential to achieve additional savings if the partner boroughs harmonised
services. It was not considered that these savings could be achieved by procuring alone.

5.4

On this basis, a business case for a joint procurement exercise using the Competitive Dialogue
Procedure was agreed by the Environment and Neighbourhood committee in November 2014
for the following services:
LOT 1 - Waste Collection, Street Cleaning, Winter Maintenance, Commercial waste and Fleet
Management
LOT 2 - Parks, Grounds Maintenance, Tree maintenance, Verges and Cemeteries

5.5

One of the key benefits of competitive dialogue is that it allows both the Authorities and bidders
to enhance and adapt the scope of the requirements throughout the procurement process. For
example, this enabled the SLWP to identify the benefits of incorporating, within the scope of the
contract, the administration functions for Waste and Cemeteries services and potentially the

Page 3

Agenda Item 3a

sports bookings function for Parks, and to negotiate contract start dates that take into account
service peaks and troughs.
The objectives of the procurement were to:
● reduce spend
● increase income opportunities
● maintain high quality services and customer satisfaction
● deliver environmentally sustainable, carbon efficient, innovative solutions.
5.6

The decisions made by E&N Committee on 27th June to award preferred bidder status to Veolia
and reserve bidder to Amey (as per recommendations 2.1, 2.3 and 2.5 of item 8 of the E&N
committee meeting) were requisitioned.

5.7

The outcome sought by the requisition is to postpone the decision in order to consult properly
with residents, take their feedback fully into account in the decision making process and for the
waste industry to begin to understand its future regulatory environment.

5.8

Legal advice on the suggestion to consult with residents and incorporate their feedback into the
decision making process, confirms that there is no statutory duty to consult with regard to the
service changes. The procurement process is strictly regulated. To ensure transparency in
procurement, specific consultation on the proposed solutions was not possible, and it was not
undertaken by any of the four boroughs, as this would have exposed the partners to a risk of
procurement challenge by the bidders.

5.9

The decision to award preferred bidder status to Veolia and reserve bidder status to Amey was
recommended based on clear and transparent evaluation criteria, and in compliance with the
Public Contract Regulations 2015. The evaluation criteria were agreed by all members of the
SLWP and published in advance of procurement commencing, in compliance with the
procurement regulations for competitive dialogue. The tenders submitted by all bidders were
based on these criteria. If the SLWP were to use anything other than the published evaluation
criteria to inform decisions at this stage, Boroughs would be at risk of legal challenge.

5.10 It is therefore not feasible to consult with residents at this late stage on the outcome of the
procurement, in that a compliant procurement process has been carried out with the authority of
the E&N committee under the Constitution of the Council, and to do so would lead to the
consequences described below.
5.11 Postponing the decision leads to potential logistical, financial and reputational implications.
Sutton Council is unable to change the specification at this late stage of the process, without
incurring considerable additional cost and time delays and therefore impacting on the delivery of
savings that the four Councils in the partnership have to make. Changes to the specification at
this late stage also could result in legal challenge from the preferred bidder, the reserve bidder
and also any failed bidders.
5.12 Sutton has been able to utilise the results from a previous consultation carried out in 2012,
which gauged residents’ views (although this was not taken into account in the procurement
decision making process) on the principle of introducing a separate food waste collection

Agenda Item 3a

Page 4

service at that time. As reported at E&N in June, when asked residents showed net support of
72% for introducing a separate food waste collection service, however this reduced to 14%
support if this was to be brought in at the expense of other services, and a net against of 33% in
the event that Council tax was increased as a result.
5.13 With regard to concerns regarding entering into an 8 year contract in a period where regulations
may change as a result of the decision to exit the EU, it is not clear at this very early stage as to
which EU-derived UK legislation will be repealed in the future (if at all). All current EU-derived
UK legislation continues to stand at this time, and will do at the very least until the UK officially
leaves the EU. In the event of any changes in law, there is provision in the contract relating to
change of law to protect the Partnership.
5.14 Much of the UK legislation on waste and recycling was developed to reflect EU Directives, and
is embedded in the following:
●
●
●
●
●
6.

Environmental Protection Act (EPA) 1990 (Part II)
Environment Act 1995
Household Recycling Act 2003
Waste Regulations 2011
Controlled Waste Regulations 2012
Impacts and Implications
Financial

6.1

The financial implications of this decision are set out in the original reports which are attached at
appendix B.

6.2

Delays to the award of this contract - to allow consultation or to assess the impact (if any) of the
recent referendum outcome on UK waste law - would result in the following benefits not being
realised for Sutton and potentially a legal challenge (from bidders and possibly other partners).
1. Significant increase in recycling capacity
2. Predicted increase in recycling performance from 37% to 42% following service
changes
3. Saving £1.5m across both Lots from year 2 onwards.
In addition, there would be the cost of the public consultation and administrative cost to
manage the resulting delay in letting the contract and in ensuring in-house services and
contracts were able to continue past 3rd April 2017. There could also be a request from the
DCLG to review the allocation of the £1.3m funding that was allocated to the SLWP to support
this procurement.
Legal

6.3

The legal implications of a delay in awarding the contract or changes at this late stage to the
specification are addressed in the main body of this report.

Page 5

Agenda Item 3a

6.4

The legal implications of the decision to choose Veolia as the preferred bidder are set out in the
original reports which are attached at appendix B.

7.

Appendices and Background Documents
Appendix letter

Title

A

Draft resolution item 8, award of Preferred Bidder status for Waste
Collection and related Environment Services

B

Award of Preferred Bidder status for Waste Collection and related
Environment Services report and appendices considered by the
Environment and Neighbourhood Committee on 27 June 2016

Background documents
Signed Requisition Request

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Date: 22 July 2016

Consultation with other officers
Finance

Yes

Legal

Yes

Environment Housing and
Regeneration

Yes

Debbie Whitton

Included with report attached at
Appendix B

N/A

Integrated Impact Assessment
required?

Sue Hogg
Fabiola Hickson, SLLP

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 7

Agenda Item 3a
APPENDIX A

Council Meeting 1 August 2016
Requisition
Environment and Neighbourhood Committee held on 27 June 2016

45.

AWARD OF PREFERRED BIDDER STATUS FOR WASTE COLLECTION AND
RELATED ENVIRONMENT SERVICES
Councillor Tony Shields raised concerns before the start of the presentation that due to the
recent vote to leave the European Union, that there would be potential changes in the current
EU legislation in regards to waste collection and disposal, and questioned how appropriate it
was to vote on an 8 year contract at this time of uncertainty.
Matt Clubb, Executive Head of Environment Commissioning gave a presentation on the
overview of the Lot 1 and Lot 2 service bids. The Executive Head of Environment
Commissioning advised that the 8 years would commence from 2017, with an option to
extend for another 8 years after that, and then again, bringing the total to 24 years. It was
advised that Kingston Council had agreed the proposal at their Committee Meeting, and it had
been endorsed by the South London Waste Partnership Joint Committee, with decisions
going to Merton Council on 4 July (post meeting note: this was called in), and Croydon
Council on 11 July (post meeting note: this was agreed).
An overview was given of the proposed changes, as well as the benefits of the proposal.
Service changes were planned for April 2017 for the London Borough of Sutton.
Councillor Nighat Piracha asked if there was anything that would remain in-house, and who
should councillors contact with issues they received from residents. The Executive Head of
Environment Commissioning advised that there would be a client team responsible for
managing both contracts, and any issues would be directed to that team.
Councillor Tony Shields expressed concern that the waste handling regulations were from the
EU and therefore may change.
The Strategic Director of Environment, Housing and Regeneration advised that officer had
received specialist legal advice, there can be clauses to allow for changes in legislation, and a
lot of the current legislation in enacted in UK law.
Councillor Manuel Abellan asked how the performance of the contractor would be monitored,
and asked what could be done to reassure those residents who were concerned about the
increase in the number of bins required at their property.
The Executive Head of Environment Commissioning responded that the proposed preferred
bidder Veolia manages over 40 contracts within the UK and approximately a dozen within
London, as a large company who regularly deliver these services in a number of places.
There would be a clienting team who would ensure that standards are met, and monetary
deductions would be made if these standards were not met. If the standards were not met, the
contract could be ceased.
The Executive Head of Environment Commissioning advised that the service would continue
to work flexibly with residents for example in those areas who did not use wheeled bins.

Agenda Item 3a

Page 8
APPENDIX A

Councillor Joyce Melican asked what would happen in those houses with reduced space for
wheeled bin storage. There was also concern expressed in regards to the communications
plan as this was a big change. Councillor Melican asked how this would be communicated to
residents.
The Executive Head of Environment Commissioning answered that the communications plan
is currently around the decision, which would then be fine-tuned, and then a detailed
communications plan could be devised, whilst ensuring the timing was correct.
Councillor Hanna Zuchowska raised concern about space given the increase in bins and
asked if the boxes were stackable. Councillor Zuchowska also asked if there was anything in
place regarding nappies.
The Executive Head of Environment Commissioning advised that the recycling boxes are
stackable, and that neighbouring boroughs with fortnightly collections had not experienced
significant problems with nappies, and reminded the committee that the council did run a cloth
nappy scheme.
Councillor Neil Garratt asked why there had been no consultation with residents.
The Executive Head of Environment Commissioning answered that there was a consultation
in 2012 in regards to the food waste service, the results of which reflected that a large
percentage of residents wanted a food waste service, but that figure decreased significantly
when asked if they would pay for that service.
Councillor Paul Wingfield asked what would happen with residents with mobility issues. The
Executive Head of Environment Commissioning advised that the 1300 residents currently
receiving an assisted collection would be reviewed through the process.
Councillor Tony Shields raised concern at the lack of attempt to save the weekly collections,
and raised concerns with due diligence for the lot 2 contract.
The Executive Head of Environment Commissioning outlined the process for selecting the
preferred bidders.
Councillor Tony Shields asked what value would be handed over to the preferred bidder in
relation to vehicles.
The Executive Head of Environment Commissioning advised that the existing bins would be
continue to be used plus the additional bins required, the costing of which is already included.
The current vehicles will also be used, but are coming to the end of their useful life, and splitbody vehicles would be required for the new services. The Local Authority would be providing
the capital for this, which is included in the costings provided.
Councillor Neil Garratt asked what would happen if the contractor experienced financial
difficulty, giving concern that LBS staff and vehicles would then be with the contractor.
The Executive Head of Environment Commissioning responded that in the unlikely event that
this happened, they must provide the council with a parent company guarantee to run the
service for a set period of time (usually 12 months) to give the council time to either bring the
service back in-house or to re-procure. All current staff would be TUPE’d over to help with the
continuity of providing the services.

Page 9

Agenda Item 3a
APPENDIX A

RESOLVED:
2.1

Agree to award Preferred Bidder status to Veolia (ES) UK Limited for the provision of
the Lot 1 services (waste collection, street cleaning, winter maintenance and vehicle
procurement and maintenance) for a period of eight years with the option to extend
for two further periods of eight years (twenty four in total) to commence from April
2017.

2.2

Agree to award Preferred Bidder status to The Landscape Group Limited for the
provision of Lot 2 services (parks, grounds maintenance, cemeteries, verges and
tree maintenance) for a period of eight years with the option to extend for a two
further periods of eight years (twenty four in total) to commence from February 2017.

2.3

Agree that Amey LG Limited is appointed as the Reserve Bidder for the Lot 1
services and Veolia (ES) UK Limited is appointed as the Reserve Bidder for the Lot 2
services.

2.4

Agree delegation to the Strategic Director of Environment, Housing and
Regeneration, based on the principles at 4.33 of this report and following fine tuning,
to agree the Inter Authority Agreement (IAA) and the arrangements relating to the
management of the contracts.

2.5

Note the service changes detailed in paras 4.9 - 4.21.

2.6

Approve the charge for the Green Garden Waste service, as detailed at para 4.13 of
this report, from April 2017.

2.7

Note the requirement to advertise the Council’s intention to grant leases for those
LBS properties (which include open space) within scope as detailed at Appendix 9 of
this report.

2.8

Agree that the Preferred Bidders are permitted to start consultation with staff and
union representatives, prior to contract award, about any proposed changes to
employment terms and conditions.

(Note for Council: the requisition relates to resolutions recommendations 2.1, 2.3 and 2.5)

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 11

Agenda Item 3a

APPENDIX B
Report to:

Environment and Neighbourhood
Committee

Report title:

Ward/Areas affected:
Chair of Committee

Award of preferred and reserve bidder status for the provision of Waste
Collection and other environmental services procured via the South
London Waste Partnership (SLWP).
Mary Morrissey – Strategic Director of Environment, Housing and
Regeneration
Borough-wide
Councillor Jill Whitehead

Author /Contact
Number(s):

Matt Clubb – Executive Head of Environment Commissioning, 020 8770
6116

Corporate Plan
Priorities:

 A Green Council
 A Fair Council
 A Smart Council
Appendix 10 exempt by virtue of paragraph 3, Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972

Report from:

Open/Exempt:
Signed:

1.

Date:

Date:

27 June 2016

10 June 2016

Summary

1.1

Following a procurement exercise conducted by the South London Waste Partnership
(SLWP), this report seeks approval to the selection of Veolia (ES) UK Limited as
Preferred Bidder for waste collection, street cleaning, winter maintenance and vehicle
procurement and maintenance (Lot 1) and Amey LG Limited as Reserve Bidder. It also
seeks approval to select The Landscape Group Limited as Preferred Bidder for parks
and grounds maintenance (Lot 2) and Veolia (ES) UK Limited as Reserve Bidder.

1.2

The report details the implications of the proposal on Sutton’s existing services, the
governance arrangements for the new contract and the proposed timetable for the
remainder of the procurement exercise.

2.

Recommendations

That the Environment and Neighbourhood Committee:
2.1

Agree to award Preferred Bidder status to Veolia (ES) UK Limited for the provision of the
Lot 1 services (waste collection, street cleaning, winter maintenance and vehicle
procurement and maintenance) for a period of eight years with the option to extend for
two further periods of eight years (twenty four in total) to commence from April 2017.

1

Agenda Item 3a

Page 12

APPENDIX B
2.2

Agree to award Preferred Bidder status to The Landscape Group Limited for the
provision of Lot 2 services (parks, grounds maintenance, cemeteries, verges and tree
maintenance) for a period of eight years with the option to extend for a two further
periods of eight years (twenty four in total) to commence from February 2017.

2.3

Agree that Amey LG Limited is appointed as the Reserve Bidder for the Lot 1 services
and Veolia (ES) UK Limited is appointed as the Reserve Bidder for the Lot 2 services.

2.4

Agree delegation to the Strategic Director of Environment, Housing and Regeneration,
based on the principles at 4.33 of this report and following fine tuning, to agree the Inter
Authority Agreement (IAA) and the arrangements relating to the management of the
contracts.

2.5

Note the service changes detailed in paras 4.9 - 4.21.

2.6

Approve the charge for the Green Garden Waste service, as detailed at para 4.13 of this
report, from April 2017.

2.7

Note the requirement to advertise the Council’s intention to grant leases for those LBS
properties (which include open space) within scope as detailed at Appendix 9 of this
report.

2.8

Agree that the Preferred Bidders are permitted to start consultation with staff and union
representatives, prior to contract award, about any proposed changes to employment
terms and conditions.

3.

Background

3.1

Since 2010, successive national governments have been seeking to reduce the public
sector deficit, principally through reductions in public expenditure. As a result Councils
have had significant reductions in their funding from government grants. At the same
time the Council has faced increasing demand for services due to demographic
pressures and the consequences of other national government policies such as welfare
reform.

3.2

The London Borough of Sutton is no different from other Councils. In order to set a fully
funded budget, as we are legally required to do, the Council needs to save £74m from
its annual budget between 2010/11 and 2019/20, equivalent to over half of the current
annual budget (£144.9m). Between 2010-16 the Council delivered £52m savings
through a mixture of recommissioning services, moving to alternative models of service
delivery and identifying operational and back-office efficiencies. Our Smarter Services
Sutton and Smarter Council transformation programmes have been supported by
public consultation under the banner of 'Sutton's Future', with the latter helping identify
£20m of the total savings.

2

Page 13

Agenda Item 3a

APPENDIX B
3.3

Despite this, further funding and grant reductions are expected from national
government over the medium term with a funding gap of £22m projected by 2019/20, of
which about £5m is expected to be covered by the 'social care precept' which councils
may raise specifically to address cost pressures on social care. To address the
remaining funding gap of £17.3m, the Council is continuing to transform key services
through the Smarter Council programme, and will be reviewing all its services and the
outcomes they are delivering through a new four year Strategic Commissioning Plan
which will be presented at Strategy and Resources Committee in July 2016.

3.4

The SLWP was formed in 2003 and has a proven record of providing cost-effective
waste management services through the procurement of waste disposal, recycling and
Household Reuse and Recycling Centre contracts.

3.5

Following these successes SLWP officers, along with external advisors, explored
opportunities for the future delivery of a range of high quality environmental services.
This assessed the merits of procuring services in partnership, as opposed to procuring
alone, or retaining existing arrangements. This suggested savings in the region of 10%
from procuring jointly with the potential to achieve additional savings if the partner
boroughs harmonised services - which would not be achieved by procuring alone.

3.6

On this basis a business case for a joint procurement exercise for the following
services was agreed by the Environment and Neighbourhood committee in November
2014, based on the following lots:
Lot 1 (All boroughs)

Lot 2 (Sutton & Merton only)

Waste collection

Parks and grounds maintenance

Street cleaning

Cemeteries

Commercial waste

Highway verge maintenance

Winter maintenance

Tree maintenance (excluding
inspections)

Vehicle procurement and
maintenance

Sports and play facilities
management

3.7

The objectives of the procurement were to reduce spend, increase income
opportunities and maintain high quality services and customer satisfaction through
environmentally sustainable, carbon efficient, innovative solutions.

3.8

The current service arrangements across the SLWP Boroughs are at Appendix 1.

3

Agenda Item 3a

Page 14

APPENDIX B
4.

Issues
Procurement Process

4.1

Given the scope and complexity of services and feedback from market engagement,
the competitive dialogue procurement route (Appendix 2) was agreed.

4.2

One of the key benefits of competitive dialogue is that it allows both the Authorities and
bidders to enhance and adapt the scope of the requirements throughout the
commissioning process. This enabled partners to identify the benefits of incorporating
the administration functions for Waste and Cemeteries services, along with potentially
the sports bookings function for Parks, within the scope of the contract.

4.3

In addition, Merton and Sutton were able to review the timescale and bring forward the
contract start date for Lot 2 services from April 2017 to February 2017, to ensure that
the contractor is in place prior to the start of the horticultural cutting season.
Evaluation Criteria

4.4

The evaluation criteria were agreed at the outset of the process and shared with
bidders:
Technical - Evaluation of the approach to service delivery, technical solutions,
approach to the contract specification and robustness of the resource plan to deliver
the outputs required.
Financial - Evaluation of the approach to the contract payment mechanism and the
robustness of the pricing and financing of the contract.
Legal and commercial - Evaluation of the approach to the contract as a whole,
including organisational structures for delivering services. A key area for consideration
was the approach to Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) (‘TUPE’)
legislation and pension provision.
Bid coherence - Evaluation of the bids to ensure consistency across the the above
elements.

4.5

The bid prices were evaluated as a Net Present Value (NPV) of the annual contract
over the 8 year contract term. Appendix 3 sets out the price evaluation method used to
determine the most economically advantageous tender.
Evaluation Outcome

4.6

Final tenders for Lot 1 (Amey, Biffa Municipal Limited and Veolia) and Lot 2 (The
Landscape Group and Veolia) were received on 1 April 2016, evaluated and
moderated.

4.7

As a result Veolia (ES) UK Limited achieved the highest quality score and the lowest
price for Lot 1, resulting in the recommendation to appoint them as Preferred Bidder
and Amey LG Limited as Reserve Bidder. The Landscape Group Limited achieved the
second highest quality score and the lowest price for Lot 2. Therefore the Price

4

Page 15

Agenda Item 3a

APPENDIX B
Evaluation Method (Appendix 3) was used to determine the most economically
advantageous final tender response. The outcome of this process was that The
Landscape Group ranked first overall, resulting in the recommendation to appoint them
as Preferred Bidder and Veolia (ES) UK Limited as Reserve Bidder.
4.8

On 7 June 2016 the Joint Waste Committee (JWC) considered a report setting out the
evaluation results, including the prices offered by each bidder and their bid quality
scores, (set out at in table 1 and 2 of the confidential Appendix 10). The outcome of the
procurement process was endorsed by the Members of the JWC.
Impact on existing services

4.9

The main service changes in Lot 1 relate to waste collection, with Veolia proposing the
introduction of a weekly collection of food waste, alongside the fortnightly collection of
residual waste. Existing brown wheeled bins will continue to be used for residual waste,
with the introduction of a food waste bin and a kitchen caddy.

4.10

Veolia is also proposing a weekly collection of recyclables with householders
separating out paper and card from other recyclates. To achieve this, existing green
wheeled bins will be used for the paper and card, with a box provided for the remaining
recyclates. These separate streams will be collected on an alternate weekly basis (eg Weeks 1 & 3 - Paper/Card, Weeks 2 & 4 - dry recyclables). This will enable paper and
card to be sent direct to market without incurring processing costs with boroughs
receiving guaranteed income as a result.

4.11

The collection of all domestic waste streams from flats in Sutton will be dependent on
need.

4.12

Veolia will continue with a chargeable bulky waste service and are seeking to
collaborate with 3rd sector organisations to deliver this. Charges for the service will be
reported to the Environment and Neighbourhood Committee as part of the annual fees
and charges report.

4.13

Veolia will continue with a chargeable green garden waste service but this will be
delivered all year round, (compared to the current nine month service) with a 240 litre
bin as standard. The annual cost of the service from April 2017 is proposed to be
£61.50 with no early bird discount. Any changes in future years to this charge will be
reported to the Environment and Neighbourhood Committee as part of the annual fees
and charges report.

4.14

To ensure the green garden waste service can commence in April 2017, Veolia may
need to carry out an appropriate communications campaign (in conjunction with Sutton)
prior to contract commencement. This may include contacting residents to arrange
payment and providing information about the service.

4.15

Veolia is proposing a change in waste collection operational times from April 2017,
which will see the cessation of the double shifting of vehicles. The proposed times of

5

Agenda Item 3a

Page 16

APPENDIX B
collection are 6am to 4pm Monday to Friday, and 7am to 5pm on Saturday (current
operating times are 6am to 8:30pm Monday to Friday and 7am to 2:45pm Saturdays).
4.16

It is anticipated that there will be no change to the day of waste collection for residents
in April 2017. There may however be a change in the day of collection of green garden
waste. A summary of the proposed changes can be found at Appendix 4.

4.17

Sutton’s commercial waste service will be operated by Veolia, who propose to integrate
its existing commercial waste portfolio with that of the SLWP boroughs. It is anticipated
that there will be no change to the pricing mechanism for existing LBS customers for
2017/18, however Veolia will have flexibility to adjust customer prices.

4.18

The street cleaning service proposed by Veolia will introduce a neighbourhood
approach (see Appendix 5) which mirrors Sutton’s Local Committee structure, with two
local committees per neighbourhood. The existing service operates between 6am and
7.15pm Monday to Friday and 6am to 6pm on Saturday and Sundays; Veolia propose
to operate between 5.30am to 10pm Monday to Friday, 6am to 8.30pm on Saturday
and 6am to 6.30pm on Sunday. There will also be a harmonisation of standards across
the partner boroughs relating to response times for services such as graffiti and fly
tipping, resulting in the same or improved standards for Sutton.

4.19

For Lot 2, the specification was refined through the dialogue process, with emphasis
placed on creating output based services, rather than frequencies. The Landscape
Group propose to retain dedicated teams in our strategic parks, with a greater reliance
on mobile teams in other areas providing improved flexibility to the service.

4.20

The award of the Lot 2 services to The Landscape Group results in cessation of the
Council’s existing contracts with City Suburban for the maintenance of trees and with G
Burley & Sons for the maintenance of verges. The inspection of trees remains the
responsibility of the Council.

4.21

The Landscape Group is proposing a revised charging schedule for the users of sports
services within parks, subject to fine tuning and this will be reported to the Environment
and Neighbourhood Committee as part of the annual fees and charges report.
Customer experience

4.22

Customers will continue to contact the council through existing channels to make
enquiries, report problems and subscribe/pay for services. The solutions proposed by
Veolia and The Landscape Group will connect with and update the Council’s Customer
Relationship Management (CRM) system, enabling the provision of real time
information and transactions.
Benefits of change

4.23

The objectives agreed prior to the commencement of the procurement exercise, sought
to ensure that levels of service delivery would be maintained, with a contribution to the
required savings targets and enhance the environmental performance of the services.

6

Page 17

Agenda Item 3a

APPENDIX B
The proposed solutions deliver significant benefits to Sutton over the course of the
contract term.
4.24

The proposals to introduce weekly food waste collection, fortnightly collection of
residual waste and enhanced recycling capacity (from 480 litres to 810 litres per 4
week period) will assist in contributing to the achievement of the Council’s One Planet
Sutton targets as listed at Appendix 6c of this report. Following the introduction of
these changes Veolia predict that Sutton’s recycling performance will rise from 37%
(unaudited for 2015/16) to 42% in 2017. These proposals enable Sutton to introduce a
weekly food waste collection service, a previous consultation (reported to this
Committee in January 2013) indicated that residents would welcome a borough wide
collection of food waste, with a net support of 72%, but not at the expense of other
services (14% net support) or if it resulted in an increase in Council tax (net opposed
33%).

4.25

In addition to the positive impact on our recycling performance, this contract will deliver
significant savings to Sutton for the duration of the contract. The overall saving from
the procurement exercise to Sutton is £1.1m in the first year rising to £1.5m in
subsequent years. The total saving to Sutton over the first eight years of the contracts
will be £10.3m.

4.26

Sutton has consistently provided high quality services to residents in these service
areas, this becomes more challenging in a time of reducing budgets. The selection of
these contractors provides a service resilience that Sutton is not currently able to
provide; as they will be able to distribute resources across the Partnership area to
manage demand. They will also be able to divert resources from outside the
Partnership area, to enhance resilience of service delivery, this is particularly beneficial
(but not restricted) to the winter maintenance service.

4.27

Subject to confirmation of leases, the Preferred Bidders may not require the use of the
depots situated at Therapia Lane, Wrythe Lane, Grove Park, Beddington Park and
Rose Hill Park. These may become available for alternative use (after consideration by
the Buildings Utilisation Board), which could generate an annual rental income or
capital receipt if the property is deemed surplus to requirement.

4.28

Risk
Changes to waste collection services involve risks regarding their implementation and
customer impact. There may be disruptions to the service provided, however, the
clienting team and Partnership will work alongside the contractor to minimise the
impact. Sutton successfully implemented changes in 2012, a chargeable green garden
waste service in 2015 and Veolia more recently has implemented the proposed service
in RB Kingston. This past experience, in conjunction with a jointly agreed
communications plan, will seek to minimise any potential disruption.

7

Page 18

Agenda Item 3a

APPENDIX B
4.29

4.30

4.31

Communications
The Partnership has an overarching Communications plan, agreed by the SLWP
Communications group. Given the different implications of the contract awards for
each borough, Sutton has compiled a service-specific communications plan which
identifies the strategic drivers and acknowledges the local impact on residents,
businesses and staff.
The borough specific plan explains the rationale and benefits (detailed at 4.23 to 4.27)
of the decision to award these contracts incorporating the impact of service changes.
Sutton will work with our partners, Veolia and The Landscape Group to ensure
residents continue to receive high performing services. The communications activities
(Appendix 7) utilise a variety of channels to ensure messages are delivered to
stakeholders at the appropriate time, including attendance at local committees and
communication activities planned by Veolia and The Landscape Group.
Governance
In establishing the Partnership in 2003, it was a legal requirement to fully constitute a
Joint Waste Committee (JWC), underpinned by a series of Inter Authority Agreements
(IAA), to cover the procurement activities carried out.

4.32

This current procurement project does not come under the remit of the JWC. However,
the SLWP partners saw the opportunity to build on these relationships and experience
developed as members of the Partnership to take this project forward. In September
2015 this committee agreed a new IAA relating to the procurement of these services
under Lots 1 and 2. This related only to the procurement phase, and a supplementary
IAA is being drafted for the contract management phase, prior to contract
commencement.

4.33

The main principles remain consistent with those in existing agreements and cover the
period from contract award onwards. The points below summarise the main elements
of the agreement;
●
●
●

●

4.34

No savings achieved during the life of this contract shall lead to increased costs
for any of the other Partnership boroughs.
No changes to the scope of the contract shall add to any borough’s costs without
that borough’s agreement.
The split of costs and income by borough has been agreed with the preferred
bidders and will be the basis for the individual borough charges; these will be the
starting point for negotiations in how any changes to payments should be
apportioned in the life of the contract.
The governance and contract management structure for the contracts, including
timescales for review.

Clienting
The principles of the client function will be set out in the IAA. These will seek to ensure
a consistent approach to contract management by the Partnership whilst taking
account of the individual requirements of boroughs. It is therefore proposed that the

8

Page 19

Agenda Item 3a

APPENDIX B
Partnership will provide the overarching, strategic role as the single point of contact for
the contractors ensuring compliance with the service performance indicators (Appendix
6a and 6b), whilst the boroughs will monitor and manage at an operational level. The
proposed division of duties can be found at Appendix 8.
4.35

In the early stages of the contract this structure will allow individual boroughs to ensure
that the service changes are successfully implemented. The structure for Sutton will
incorporate the requirements to monitor Veolia’s and The Landscape Group’s
performance but will also continue to deliver those services or functions that are not
being provided by the contractor such as tree inspections, biodiversity and fleet
management.

4.36

The cost of this structure and Sutton’s contribution to the Partnership client for the first
two years will be contained within existing estimates, with a view to seeking efficiencies
across the Partnership once the service changes have been implemented in all
boroughs.
Timetable

4.37

The timetable below illustrates the activities required until contract commencement.
Activity

Proposed Date

Borough approvals for Preferred and
Reserve bidders

June - 3rd August 2016

Preferred Bidders fine tuning

August - November 2016

Advertising intention to lease properties

August/September 2016

Consultation by preferred bidders with staff
and Trade Unions regarding changes to
terms and conditions

August 2016 - January 2017 (Lot 2)

Contract signing and standing down of
Reserve Bidders

December 2016

Mobilisation periods

January - March 2017

Contract commencement - Sutton & Merton
Sutton & Merton
Croydon (Lot 1)
Kingston (Lot 1)

Lot 1 - April 2017
Lot 2 - February 2017
March 2018
August 2022

9

August 2016 - March 2017 (Lot 1)

Agenda Item 3a

Page 20

APPENDIX B
5.

Options Considered

5.1

Each of the partner boroughs had a number of potential routes through which to provide
these services, it was concluded that a joint procurement using competitive dialogue was
the preferred option for the Partnership for the reason stated at 4.1 to 4.3 of this report.

6.

Impacts and Implications

6.1

Financial
The cost of this procurement to the partnership is forecast to be £1.640m, of which
Sutton’s share is £410k. Transformation Challenge Award funding of £1.330m was
successfully bid for on behalf of the Partnership by Sutton and received from the
Department for Communities and Local Government, of which Sutton’s share is £332k,
resulting in a net cost for the procurement of £77k to Sutton.

6.2

For the purposes of comparison it has been assumed that existing budgets will be
inflated by 1% annually. Bidder’s prices submitted within final tender responses were
based on an indexation cap of 2.5%. Based on this 1% inflation scenario for budgets
and compared to the 2.5% cap, the award of the contract to Veolia for Lot 1 will result
in total savings for the partnership of £47.4m. The award of the contract to The
Landscape Group for Lot 2 will result in total savings for the partnership of £8.6m.

6.3

For Sutton this will result in total savings across both Lots of £1.088m in year 1 rising to
£1.517m in year 2 and subsequent years. This exceeds the anticipated 10% savings
target for this procurement exercise. It is also anticipated that savings in disposal costs
may be achieved alongside the forecasted increase in recycling rates.

6.4

The Council are seeking to fund the capital costs of £5.454m (over the 8 years) for
vehicles, containers and depot ICT and refurbishment in relation to Lot 1. On this basis
the financing costs in year 1 will be £672k for Sutton. The price of the contract reflects
this requirement and has been built into the savings figures above.

6.5

The costs associated with the integration of Sutton’s ICT systems are currently
estimated to be £480k. It has been agreed that the costs of this project can be funded
from the Digital Transformation Fund as in addition to the integration of systems it is
anticipated that improvements in processes can also be achieved.

6.6

The cost of the client arrangements will be met from within existing estimates.

6.7

The bidders have been offered the use of certain properties/sites within the Borough. If
any of these are not required by the contractor, they will either be let at market rental
prices or disposed of. This will generate additional income to the Council.

6.8

The staff currently working in these service areas will be transferred to the new
contractors under TUPE. The contractors will each sign an admission agreement to
become an Admitted Body of Croydon’s Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS).
In these circumstances it is normal practice for the Council to (bulk) transfer staff LGPS

10

Page 21

Agenda Item 3a

APPENDIX B
entitlements at a fully funded level, this means making good any previous pension
deficit in respect of the staff that are transferring. There will need to be an actuarial
assessment to determine the level of funding required at the point of transfer and then
a negotiated agreement between Sutton & Croydon in conjunction with their respective
actuaries. Once the transfer is paid it will remove the future liabilities for these staff
from the Sutton LGPS.
6.9

6.10

6.11

The costs of the communication campaigns will be funded by the contractor with a
contribution of time from Council Officers.
Legal
The competitive dialogue and the evaluation process have been conducted throughout
with advice and oversight from the Partnerships legal advisers Gowling WLG. The
contract management phase IAA is being drafted by the SLLP on behalf of the four
boroughs and in consultation with the boroughs’ lead officers for the services.
HR
There are 182 directly managed staff currently working in these services employed by
the London Borough of Sutton. These staff will be transferred to the new contractors
as from February 2017 or April 2017, under the Transfer of Undertaking Regulations
(TUPE). TUPE transfer plans will be drawn up by Veolia and The Landscape Group
during fine tuning for agreement by the Partnership and individual boroughs. Staff and
trade unions will be fully consulted. The precise dates of transfer will be agreed at fine
tuning discussions.

6.12

There are a small number (approx 8) of indirectly managed Council and contracted
staff who will be potentially impacted by the award of these contracts, including staff (or
contracted staff) carrying out related support services - eg Business Support, Contact
Centre, Finance, HR, ICT, Corporate Services, Facilities, Property Management.

6.13

Both Veolia and The Landscape Group have indicated that they want to start early
consultation with staff and unions prior to transfer, to discuss variation to the existing
employment terms and conditions from the start of the contracts. The proposed
changes include a change in location for waste collection, street cleaning, vehicle
maintenance and business support staff (and potentially a small number of Contact
Centre staff), a reduction in posts in Street cleaning and an increase in working hours
(and pay) for waste collection and parks staff.

6.14

In terms of TUPE legislation Veolia and The Landscape Group are able to have early
discussions with staff and trade unions about proposed changes to staff terms and
conditions, but only with the Council's permission. There would be no involvement from
the Council, apart from facilitating the discussions. Any changes to Terms and
Conditions will be implemented after the date of transfer by Veolia and The Landscape
Group and not by the Council.

11

Agenda Item 3a

Page 22

APPENDIX B
6.15

Asset Management/Property
There is a statutory requirement for the Council to advertise its intention to grant a
lease for some or all of the buildings within open space. The Council will advertise its
intention during August/September 2016 (subject to approval by all partners to award
Preferred Bidder status), and consider representations made, as required in sections
123 (2A) and 127 (3) of the Local Government Act 1972. This will be completed prior to
final decisions taken on the granting of leases of the sites to the contractors.

6.16

The leases will be on standard lease terms (at a market rental), which have already
been approved by the Council’s Executive Head of Asset Planning Management and
Capital Delivery, who has delegated authority under the Council's Constitution to grant
leases for the use of Council property.

6.17

A number of properties have been offered to bidders as part of the procurement. Any
sites surplus to the service Group's requirements, will be referred to the Building
Utilisation Board. This Board will consider options for continued or alternative uses by
the Council or a third party, or any redevelopment potential, and will report any property
recommended for disposal where the value is in assessed to be in excess of £1m, to
the Strategy & Resources Committee. A list of the sites offered can be found at
Appendix 9 along with the Preferred Bidders requirements, where known.
ICT

6.18

For both Lots, the boroughs use a variety of different ICT systems, which will need to
be taken into consideration by Veolia and The Landscape Group. To ensure the
required ICT functionality is in place for the contract start, the Council will require Veolia
and The Landscape Groups to work closely with the Council’s ICT services. This will
ensure that appropriate ICT integration is designed, tested and installed, with an
appropriate migration of data carried out before contract commencement. The Council
is therefore appointing an ICT project manager. The estimated cost for the integration,
decommissioning of systems and the project management is £480k.
One Planet Sutton

6.19

There are a number of priority One Planet Sutton (OPS) targets (Appendix 6c) to be
met by 2017, relating to the services in scope of the contracts. The performance of
these contracts will be key to the achievement of the Council’s sustainability targets,
and the contractors will be required to supply information as part of the performance
and monitoring function. These targets will be reported on at the end of 2017/18 and
subsequent years.

6.20

The proposal to change waste collection services will have a positive impact in
assisting the Council in achieving a number of sustainability targets. It is anticipated
that, with the introduction of a borough wide food waste collection service and
enhanced recycling capacity and services, the recycling rate will increase to 42% by
2017.

6.21

Integrated Impact Assessment
An integrated impact assessment (IIA) has been completed, assessing the impact of
these changes on all stakeholders. It identified that all households access these

12

Page 23

Agenda Item 3a

APPENDIX B
services and that staff in scope, third sector organisations and managing agents may be
affected by the change. There are a number of positive impacts which are detailed in
4.23 to 4.27 of this report, as well as contribution to seven of Sutton’s Community
Developmental Assets.
6.22

Changes to the waste collection service have the potential to impact on all households.
The IIA identified that especially those who rely on the assisted collection service
(c1,300 households) may be impacted. It is important to ensure these residents are
provided with an uninterrupted service throughout the period of change. The proposals
will require households to have additional containers which may impact those with
limited space. However, by continuing to offer a flexible approach to the provision of
containers, the contractor will seek to mitigate the impact.

6.23

In mitigating the impact of the proposed changes the Council and contractors will ensure
that all residents and stakeholders receive information about the service changes
through a variety of channels as part of the communications plan.

6.24

Staff will be affected by the proposals to change services in the event they agree to a
change in their terms and conditions. These may include changes to shift patterns,
working hours, pay, location and duties. In mitigation Sutton will ensure that, as
described at paragraph 6.7 of this report, the TUPE regulations are adhered to.

7.

Appendices and Background Documents
Appendix
Appendix 1

Current waste collection services provided by partner boroughs

Appendix 2

Competitive Dialogue process map

Appendix 3

Evaluation decision tree

Appendix 4

Proposed changes to waste collection services

Appendix 5

Neighbourhoods map

Appendix 6a, 6b and 6c
Appendix 7

Service Performance Indicators including One Planet Sutton
2017 priority targets
Communications activities

Appendix 8

Clienting functions

Appendix 9

List of sites

Appendix 10

Final Tender Evaluation Summary exempt by virtue of
paragraph 3, Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972

Background Documents
Integrated Impact Assessment - June 2016
Audit Trail
Version

Final

Date: 10 June 2016

13

Agenda Item 3a

Page 24

APPENDIX B
Consultation with other officers
Officer
Finance

Comments Sought
Yes

Comments checked by
Sue Hogg

OPS

Yes

Andrea Crump

Procurement

Yes

Andy Oakley

Legal

Yes

Fabiola Hickson/Tracy Swan

Human Resources

Yes

Amanda Fulker

Asset Management/Property

Yes

Marsha Henry/Chris Litchfield

ICT

Yes

Robert Cremer

Integrated Impact Assessment
(IIA) required

Yes

Completed

14

Page 25

Agenda Item 3a

Current waste collection services provided by partner boroughs

Appendix 1

Croydon
Service

Container

Collection frequency

Food Waste

Outside bin and kitchen
caddy

Weekly

Residual Waste

Black wheeled bin

Fortnightly

Paper/Card

Blue box

Fortnightly

Recycling

Green box

Fortnightly

Textiles

Resident supplied plastic
bag

Weekly

Garden Waste

Black bin with brown lid

Fortnightly (Seasonal)

Service

Container

Collection frequency

Food Waste

Outside bin and kitchen
caddy

Weekly

Residual Waste

Sacks

Weekly

Paper/Card

Purple box (comingled)

Weekly

Recycling

Purple box (comingled)

Weekly

Garden Waste

Brown bin

Fortnightly

Service

Container

Collection frequency

Food Waste

Outside bin and kitchen
caddy

Weekly

Residual Waste

Black wheeled bin

Fortnightly

Paper/Card

Wheeled bin with a blue lid

Fortnightly

Recycling

Green box

Fortnightly

Garden Waste

Grey bin with a green lid

Fortnightly

Merton

Kingston

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 27

Competitive Dialogue process

Agenda Item 3a

Appendix 2

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 29

Evaluation decision tree

Agenda Item 3a

Appendix 3

The flow diagram below sets out the evaluation process to determine the ranking of each of the
detailed Solutions/Tenders with regard to the most economically advantageous detailed
Solution/Tender (as the case may be). Each detailed Solution or Tender will be compared
against each of the other detailed Solutions/Tenders (as applicable) using the flow diagram
bel
ow
(not
e
that
a
det
aile
d
Sol
utio
n/T
end
er
is referred to as a 'Bid' in the flow diagram):

In determining whether a detailed Solution/Tender is comparable in cost to another, their
respective adjusted NPVs will be: within a margin of 1% of each other for Lot 1; and within a
margin of 1% of each other for Lot 2.
The quality score for each detailed Solution/Tender shall be ascertained from evaluating and
scoring the detailed Solution/Tender in accordance with the criteria. The quality score
attributed to a combined price shall be the quality score awarded to that Bidder's Lot 1
Tender/Lot 2 Tender (as applicable).
In determining whether a detailed Solution/Tender is comparable in ‘Quality’ to another, their
respective quality scores will be: within 5% of each other for Lot 1; and within 3.5% of each
other for Lot 2.
If the comparison of two detailed Solutions/Tenders through the flow diagram suggests the
need for a further exercise (scenarios with ‘focus on value’ in the flow diagram), the
Partnership will determine the preferred detailed Solution/Tender using the formula described
below:

Page 30

Agenda Item 3a

Cost per Quality point =

Cost
Quality

In scenarios with ‘focus on value’, the detailed Solution/Tender scoring the lowest cost per
Quality Point will be ranked highest, and the other detailed Solution(s)/Tender(s) shall be ranked
accordingly.

Page 31

Agenda Item 3a

Proposed Waste Collection Service

Appendix 4

Service

Container

Collection frequency

Food Waste

New bin and Kitchen caddy

Weekly

Residual Waste

Existing brown wheeled bin

Fortnightly

Paper/Card

Existing green wheeled bin

Fortnightly

Recycling

New recycling box

Fortnightly

Garden Waste

Existing garden waste bin

Fortnightly

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 5

Map of Sutton Neighbourhoods

Page 33
Agenda Item 3a

This page is intentionally left blank

SLWP draft SPIs Lot 1
Appendix 6a
Rectification Period: the period during which the Contractor has an opportunity to rectify the failure
before the Deduction applies (for the avoidance of doubt, not all SPIs shall have a Rectification Period).
Deduction: financial deduction which shall apply in the event of failure of an SPI subject to any applicable
Rectification Period.
Deduction Refresh Period: in the event that a failure has not been rectified in accordance with the
Rectification Period, the prescribed deduction shall apply for each subsequent refresh period. For the
avoidance of doubt the refresh deduction amount may differ from the initial Deduction applied.

SPI
Num
ber
1.

Service

Performance
Indicator

Definition

Proposed
Monitoring
Frequency

Proposed
Target

Rectification
Period

Proposed
Deduction

Deduction Refresh
Period

Waste
Collection
Services Residual Waste
collections

Missed
Collections –
Residual
Waste

Failure to achieve target
of fewer than 30 Missed
Collections (per 100,000
collections) for Residual
Waste collections per
Borough (pro-rata)

Monthly

30 per 100,000
per Borough

[24 hours from
notification]

£150/missed bin
per 100,000 over
the proposed
target

24 hours

Agenda Item 3a

1

Page 35

Draft Service Performance Indicators:

Missed
Collections Recyclate

4.

Waste
Collection
Services Garden Waste

Missed
collections Garden Waste

5.

Waste
Collection
Services Communal
Collections of
Recyclate
(including
communal food
waste)

Emptying of
Communal
Recyclate
Receptacles to
the required
service
standard

3.

Missed
Collections Food Waste

Failure to achieve target
of fewer than 30 Missed
Collections (per 100,000
collections) for kerbside
Recyclate collections per
Borough (pro-rata)
Failure to achieve target
of fewer than 30 Missed
Collections (per 100,000
collections) for Food
Waste collections per
Borough (pro-rata)
Failure to achieve target
of fewer than 30 Missed
Collections (per 100,000
collections) for Garden
Waste collections per
Borough (pro-rata)
Failure to empty 100% of
all Recyclate Receptacles
to ensure that no such
Receptacle is ever
overflowing

Monthly

30 per 100,000
per Borough

[24 hours from
notification]

£150/missed bin
per 100,000 over
the proposed
target

24 hours

Monthly

30 per 100,000
per Borough

[24 hours from
notification]

£150/missed bin
per 100,000 over
the proposed
target

24 hours

Monthly

30 per 100,000
per Borough

[24 hours from
notification]

£150/missed bin
per 100,000 over
the proposed
target

24 hours

Monthly

Failure to
achieve 100%
of service
standard

[24 hours from
notification]

£150 per
overflowing
container

24 hours

Page 36

Waste
Collection
Services kerbside
Recyclate
collections
Waste
Collection
Services - Food
Waste

Agenda Item 3a

2.

2

Waste
Collection
Services –
Communal
Collections for
residual waste

7.

Waste
Collection
Services Assisted
Collections

8.

Waste
Collection
Services –
Missed
Collections

9.

Waste
Collection
Services –

Emptying of
communal
residual
receptacles to
the required
service
standard
Missed
Collections –
Assisted
Collections
(Residual
Waste,
Recyclate,
Food Waste
and Garden
Waste)
Repeated
Missed
Collections
(Residual
Waste,
Recyclate,
Food Waste
and Garden
Waste)
Missed
Collections –
Bulky Waste

Failure to empty 100% of
all communal residual
receptacles at the
scheduled frequency

Monthly

Failure to
achieve 100%
of service
standard

[24 hours from
notification]

£100 per missed
container

24 hours

Failure to achieve target
of 100% of all Assisted
Collections (with no
Missed Collections) for
Residual Waste,
Recyclate, Food Waste
and Garden Waste

Monthly

Achieve 100%
of all collections
undertaken

[24 hours from
notification]

£50 per missed
collection

24 hours

Repeated Missed
Collections (within a
rolling 6 week period) as
notified to Contractor

Monthly

per household

[24 hours from
notification]

£200 for each
repeated missed
collection

24 hours

Failure to achieve 100%
of all scheduled Bulky
Waste collections.

Monthly

Achieve 100%
of all collections
undertaken

[24 hours from
notification]

£ charge to the
customer per
missed collection,

24 hours, £ charge
paid to the Authority

Page 37

6.

Agenda Item 3a

3

Waste
Collection
Services –
delivery of
Receptacles

11.

Waste
Collection
Services –
removal of Fly
Tipped Material
Waste
Collection
Services - Bulky
Waste

12.

Failure to
deliver
Receptacles
within the
required
service
response
times
Removal of
reported Fly
Tipped
Material

Failure to achieve 100%
delivery of all
Receptacles within
agreed service response
times.

Monthly

Achieve 100%
of all deliveries
of receptacles

24 hours from
notification

24 hours

Failure to remove 100%
of reported incidents of
Fly Tipped Material within
24 hours of notification.

Monthly

Achieve 100%
of removal of
Fly Tipped
Material

24 hours from
notification

£100 per missed
fly tip

24 hours

Service
response time

Failure to offer 100% of
appointments for Bulky
Waste collection within
agreed number of days

Monthly

Achieve 100%
appointments
offered within
agreed service
response time

N/A

£50 per event

24 hours

Page 38

10.

which shall be
refunded to the
customer.
Collection to be
carried out within
24 hours and at
no charge.
£10 per
undelivered
Receptacle

Agenda Item 3a

Bulky Waste

4

Waste
Collection
Services

Collection of
Recyclate,
Food, Garden
and Reuse
items
separately
from Residual
Waste
Appropriate
Storage and
Segregation of
Recyclates

14.

Waste
Collection
Services –
Recyclates

15.

Waste
Collection
Services

Delivery of
Contract
Waste to the
appropriate
delivery point

16.

Street Cleaning
Services emptying of
street litter
Receptacles

Emptying of
street litter
Receptacles to
required
service
standard

Failure to collect material
which is Reusable,
Recyclable or
Compostable, separately
from Residual Waste.

Monthly

100%
achievement

N/A

£ 1,000 per
incident

N/A

Failure to keep material
collected as Recyclate
appropriately stored and
segregated prior to being
received at a suitable reprocessor (as detailed
within Schedule 4
(Service Delivery Plan).
Failure to send Contract
Waste to the Nominated
Delivery Point or
Contingency Delivery
Point (as detailed within
Schedule 4 (Service
Delivery Plan)).
Failure to empty 100% of
all street litter
Receptacles to ensure
that no litter Receptacle is
ever full or overflowing

Monthly

100%
achievement

N/A

£150 per tonne of
Contract Waste
disposed of as
residual waste as
a consequence

N/A

Monthly

100%
achievement

N/A

£5000 per
incident

N/A

Monthly

Failure to
achieve 100%
of service
standard

2 hours from
notification

£150 per full or
overflowing
container

2 hours from
notification

Page 39

13.

Agenda Item 3a

5

18.

Street Cleaning
Services residential roads

19.

Street Cleaning
Services – all
relevant land
(as set out in
paragraph
10.2.1)

Failure to
maintain
cleanliness of
'Town &
District
Centres' [DN:
locations to be
agreed] to the
required
service
standard
Failure to
maintain
cleanliness of
residential
roads to the
required
service
standard
Cleaning of
relevant land
(as set out in
paragraph
10.2.1)

Failure to maintain
cleanliness of 'Town &
District Centres' to grade
B standard.

Monthly

Achieve 100%
street cleaning
to agreed
service
standard.

2 hours from
notification

£2,000 per failure

2 hours from
notification

Failure to maintain
cleanliness of residential
roads to grade B
standard.

Monthly

Achieve 100%
street cleaning
of agreed
service standard

24 hours from
notification

£2,000 per failure

24 hours from
notification

Failure to achieve grade
A standard at the time of
cleaning

Monthly

Achieve 100%
street cleaning
of agreed
service standard

24 hours from
notification

£500 per failure

24 hours from
notification

Page 40

Street Cleaning
Services 'Town & District
Centres'

Agenda Item 3a

17.

6

Street Cleaning
Services –
cleaning of
drainage
systems

Cleaning of
drainage
systems

Failure to carry out adhoc cleaning of drainage
systems within 72 hours
of instruction by the
Authorised Officer.

Monthly

Failure to
achieve 100%
of service
standard

N/A

£2000 per
incident

24 hours

21.

Street Cleaning
Services –
Graffiti

Removal of racist and/or
offensive Graffiti within 24
hours of notification

Monthly

100%
achievement

N/A

£200 per failure

24 hours

22.

Street Cleaning
Services –
Graffiti

Removal of non-offensive
Graffiti within 48 hours of
notification.

Monthly

100%
achievement

N/A

£200 per failure

48 hours

23.

Winter
Maintenance
Services –
gritting

Failure to
remove racist
and/or
offensive
Graffiti
Failure to
Remove of
non-offensive
Graffiti
Priority routes
gritting

As
instructed
by the
Authorised
Officer

Achieve 100%
gritting of
priority routes
within agreed
service standard

N/A

£5,000 per
incident

1 hour

24.

Winter
Maintenance –
salt bins

Salt Bin
Replenishmen
t

Failure to grit agreed
priority routes in
accordance with
prescribed timescales as
set out within each
Borough’s Winter
Maintenance Plan
Failure to maintain all salt
bins at 50% full during
winter maintenance
season

Monthly

100%
achievement

24 hours from
notification

£50 per bin

24 hours

25.

Non-Service
Vehicle
Maintenance
Services - fleet

Non-Service
Vehicle
availability

Failure to provide a
suitable replacement
Non-Service Vehicle in
accordance with

Monthly

100%
achievement

N/A

£200 per day

24 hours

Page 41

20.

Agenda Item 3a

7

Service and
Non-Service
Vehicle
Maintenance
Services - fleet
management

27.

Service and
Non-Service
Vehicle
Maintenance
Services - fleet
management

28.

Service and
Non-Service
Vehicle

paragraph 14.3.3 of this
Specification.
Number of O
Licence
vehicle missed
inspections,
MOTs and
other activities
as set out
within
Schedule 4
(Services
Delivery Plan)
Number of
Non-O
Licence
vehicle missed
inspections,
MOTs and
other activities
as set out
within
Schedule 4
(Services
Delivery Plan)
Regulatory
compliance

Failure to ensure 100% of
Service and Non-Service
Vehicle inspections,
MOTs and other activities
are undertaken for O
Licence vehicles in
accordance with agreed
schedule as set out within
Schedule 4 (Services
Delivery Plan)

Monthly

Achieve 100%
O Licence
vehicle
inspections

N/A

£5,000 per failure

N/A

Failure to ensure 100% of
Service and Non-Service
Vehicle inspections,
MOTs and other activities
are undertaken for Non-O
Licence vehicles in
accordance with agreed
schedule as set out within
Schedule 4 (Services
Delivery Plan)

Monthly

Achieve 100%
Non O Licence
vehicle
inspections

N/A

£500 per failure

N/A

Achieve no
notices served

N/A

£5,000 per notice

N/A

Serving of PG9
Prohibition Notice
(Delayed or Immediate)

Page 42

26.

Agenda Item 3a

management

8

by DVSA or failure of
MOT test

30.

All Services

Service Users

31.

Communication
s

Accurate
delivery of
communicatio
n materials

Reporting
Requirements

Failure to comply with
Schedule 6 (Reporting
Requirements) and
provide accurate
reporting [DN: this will
include reporting of H&S
and third party property
damage]
Failure to adhere to
complaints handling
process as set out within
Schedule 15 (Service
User Procedure)
Failure to deliver accurate
and appropriate
communications in
accordance with the
specification or as set out
in Schedule 4 (Services
Delivery Plan), or as
otherwise agreed with the
Authorised Officer.

Monthly

100%
achievement

24 hours from
notification

£2,000 per failure

24 hours from
notification

Monthly

100%
achievement

N/A

£500 per incident

N/A

Monthly

100% delivery
of accurate and
appropriate
communications

Rectification
period in
accordance
with
[Communicati
ons Protocol]
before penalty
applies. Cost
of delivering
correct
communicatio
ns materials
shall be borne

£5,000 per event
(not per Service
User affected)

Deduction refresh
period in accordance
with
[Communications
Protocol].

Agenda Item 3a

9

Page 43

29.

Maintenance
Services - fleet
management
All Services

Agenda Item 3a

by the
Contractor

Page 44

10

SLWP draft SPIs Lot 2
Appendix 6b

Rectification Period: the period during which the Contractor has an opportunity to rectify the failure
before the Deduction applies (for the avoidance of doubt, not all SPIs shall have a Rectification Period).
Deduction: financial deduction which shall apply in the event of failure of an SPI subject to any applicable
Rectification Period.

Service Performance Indicators

Deduction for
failure to meet
the SPI in £ per
incident (unless
specified
otherwise)

Deduction
Refresh
Period and
refresh
deduction
value (£)

N/A

£5000

N/A

N/A

£5000 per failure
on any one of the
satisfaction
targets,
which
shall apply only
once upon each

N/A

1

Agenda Item 3a

1. Customer satisfaction and complaints
(a) The Contractor shall achieve a score in the Customer Satisfaction Survey that is higher than or equal
to the baseline Resident’s Satisfaction Survey score for Merton of 72%
(b) The Contractor shall achieve a score in the Customer Satisfaction Survey that is higher than, equal to,
the baseline Customer Satisfaction Survey scores for Sutton which are as follows:
a)
Parks – All Residents Satisfaction (82%)
b)
Parks – Service Users Satisfaction (88%)
c)
Playgrounds – All Residents Satisfaction (71%)
d)
Playgrounds – Service Users Satisfaction (88%)

Rectificati
on Period

Page 45

Deduction Refresh Period: in the event that a failure has not been rectified in accordance with the
Rectification Period, the prescribed deduction shall apply for each subsequent refresh period. For the
avoidance of doubt the refresh deduction amount may differ from the initial Deduction applied.

(c) The Contractor shall close a Site which (in accordance with Appendix C) is to be locked overnight within
two (2) hours of the agreed time.
(d) The Contractor shall ensure that a pitch or facility is available for use by a Service User by the agreed
time (or the pre-booked time, in the event of booked pitches or facilities)

survey
£250

N/A

£5000

N/A

N/A

£5000

N/A

£100 per incident

£50 per each
Working Day
N/A

N/A

£5000

£1000
per
each additional
month
that
issues remain
outstanding

N/A

£1000

N/A

N/A

£50 per site

N/A

£200 per night
per site
£250 per pitch or
facility or (in the
event of booked
pitches
or
facilities)
per
booking

£50
per
additional half
hour after the
Allocated
Opening Time
N/A

N/A

£50 per each
Working Day

N/A

5. Availability of equipment/play features
2

Page 46

3. Environment
The(a)
Contractor shall use only those fertilisers, products and materials as set out in the Services Delivery
Plan or as agreed with Authorised Officer
4. Availability of Parks/Services
(b) The Contractor shall ensure that all gates at a Site which (in accordance with Appendix C) is to be
locked overnight are Open by the Allocated Opening Time.

N/A

Agenda Item 3a

(c) The Contractor shall respond to a formal complaint, enquiry or Request for Information as set out within
Schedule 15 (Service User Procedure)
2. Safety
(d) In the event of an emergency the Contractor shall redeploy all necessary resources as directed by the
Authorised Officer in accordance with paragraph [x-ref] of this Specification
(e) The Contractor shall carry out a risk assessment in accordance with the Contractor’s working
procedures as set out in the Services Delivery Plan
(f) The Contractor shall carry out tasks in line with the applicable risk assessment as set out in the Services
Delivery Plan
(g) The Contractor shall address (to the Council's reasonable satisfaction) any of the issues highlighted in
any health and safety audit in accordance with the recommendations and rectification set out within the
audit.

(e) The Contractor shall ensure that an item of equipment or a play feature (for example, a slide or set of
swings) is available for use by Service Users during the specified parks operational times (In
exceptional circumstances, where an item of equipment cannot be made available due to unavailability
of a non-consumable part, a suitable rectification period will be agreed with the authorised officer
(f) The Contractor shall ensure that an entire facility (for example, a water play facility or playground) is
available for use by Service Users during the time periods agreed with the Authorised Officer

6. Service and standards
(g) The Contractor shall meet the requirements as set out in this Specification and the Contractors Services
Delivery Plan. (Please Note: This deduction is in addition to the full value of the work not completed).
7. Records and reporting
(h) The Contractor shall comply fully with its obligations set out in paragraphs [1, 2, 6 and 7] of Schedule 6
(Reporting Requirements)

£100 per item
per day

1 working
day

£1000 per facility

£1000
per
facility
each
subsequent
day

£500 per incident

N/A

1 working
day

£500

1 working
day
1 working
day
1 week

£250
per
Business Day
£500
per
Business Day
£1000 per week

£100 per each
subsequent
working day
N/A

N/A

£10,000
incident

1 month

£1000
per
member of staff

£100
per
individual per
subsequent
month

£2000
[per
annual reporting

N/A

per

N/A
N/A

N/A

3

Agenda Item 3a

10. Stakeholders and Communication
The Contractor shall adhere to the provisions and principles of the Services Delivery Plan with regard to
working with Organised Groups and stakeholders

£250 per item

Page 47

(i) The Contractor shall provide the Weekly Report in accordance with paragraph [3] of Schedule 6
(Reporting Requirements)
(j) The Contractor shall provide the Monthly Report in accordance with paragraph [4] of Schedule 6
(Reporting Requirements)
(k) The Contractor shall provide the Annual Report in accordance with paragraph [5] of Schedule 6
(Reporting Requirements)
8. Cemeteries
The Contractor shall ensure that a burial plot is prepared and available at the booked burial time in line
with the Specification and Services Delivery Pl
9. Maintaining appropriate training
The(l)Contractor shall implement an annual appraisal process for all staff. This will identify individual
training needs to ensure staff are appropriately trained to deliver the service. The contractor will arrange
suitable training to address the needs identified..

1 working
day

Agenda Item 3a

review]

Page 48

4

Page 49
Agenda Item 3a

5

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 51

LBS One Planet Sutton priority 2017 targets

Agenda Item 3a

Appendix 6c

One Planet Sutton relevant priority targets for 2017
Target
Target
reference
Cutting Carbon Emissions
ZCB 1 Priority 50% reduction in CO2 from Council buildings by 2017, from a
2010/11 baseline.
Cutting Waste
ZW 3 Priority
Reduce waste from households by 5% per household (equivalent
to 3,854 tonnes) by 2017.
ZW 4 Priority
Increase the household recycling rate to 40% by 2017.
ZW 5 Priority
Achieve the Mayor of London's 2017 Emissions performance
standard of - 0.154 tonnes of CO2 emissions per tonne of waste
managed.
ZW 6 Priority
4,000 tonnes of Local Authority collected waste sent to landfill by
2017.
Valuing Our Natural Environment
SW 2 Priority
Achieve a year on year saving in council water usage.
Supporting Healthy Communities
HH 2 Priority
Utilisation of outdoor space for exercise/health

1

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 53

Communication activities: LBS
Date and
contract
27 May

Agenda Item 3a

Appendix 7

Audience

Activity
Staff briefings to all staff
in scope [Complete]

-

Announcement of the Partnership’s
Preferred Bidders, on the same day as
JWC papers being published

27 May

Staff
directly
affected
and trade
unions
Public

-

Preferred Bidders, along with a summary
of their proposed solutions, will be
included in a Part A paper.

27 May

Public

-

About changes to services based on our
key messages

8 June

Public

-

Preferred Bidders, along with a summary
of their proposed solutions following
endorsement at JWC

10 June

-

About the procurement and about the
service changes
Announcement of Sutton’s
recommendation for preferred bidders,
reasons, benefits and timelines
Implications for staff

28 June

Public and
staff
Staff
directly
affected
and trade
unions
All Staff

SWLP to release a
statement about
preferred bidder
[Complete]
Sutton Council to have
reactive holding
statement which can be
used by the media team
and customer service
[Complete]
Sutton to release a
statement about
preferred bidders
[Complete]
Sutton to issue FAQs on
LBS website
Email message from Niall
Bolger to approximately
185 staff affected

28 June

Public

28 June

Public

August

Managers
(Staff)
Staff
directly
affected &
trade
unions
Staff
directly
affected &

28 June

August –
Lot One

August –
Lot Two

Content

-

Insight special to all staff
by communications

Press release and press
briefing – Lot One
Repeated on social
media and council
website
Press release and press
briefing – Lot Two
Repeated on social
media and council
website
Core Brief message
Veolia to meet with staff

-

-

-

Announcement of Sutton’s
recommendation for preferred bidders,
reasons, benefits and timelines

-

Announcement of preferred bidders,
reasons, benefits and timelines
Announcement of selection of preferred
bidders, reasons, benefits and timelines
Implications for staff

-

TLG to meet with staff

Announcement of Sutton’s
recommendation for preferred bidders,
reasons, benefits and timelines
Implications for staff
Announcement of Sutton’s
recommendation for preferred bidders,
reasons, benefits and timelines

-

Announcement of selection of preferred
bidders, reasons, benefits and timelines
Implications for staff

Page 54

Agenda Item 3a

trade
unions
Members

Members Bulletin

Septembe
r
October

Public

Sutton Scene enewsletter

Public

Press release

October –
Lot One

Staff
directly
affected/tr
ade
unions
Staff
directly/tra
de unions
Comms
process

Veolia consultation with
staff

Dec – Lot
One

Public
Staff/unio
ns
Members

Dec – Lot
Two

Public
Staff/unio
ns
Members

Dec – Lot
One and
Two
Dec – Lot
One and
Two
January March –
Lots One
and Two

Public

February
– Lot Two

Public

April - Lot
One

Public

August

October –
Lot Two
Oct to
Dec – Lot
One and
Two

Notification of sites to be advertised with intention
to lease
- Announcement of selection of preferred
bidders, reasons, benefits and timelines
- Promotion of Friends of groups to monitor
parks
- T and C and TUPE

TLG consultation with
staff

-

T and C and TUPE

Communications
protocols, website
coordination and
campaign plans

-

Press release and press
briefing with Veolia
Distributed to staff
through insight and
members via email
Letters to staff in scope
Press release and press
briefing with TLG
Distributed to staff
through insight and
members via email
letters to staff in scope
Twitter Q and A with
Head of Service

-

Communications to work with Veolia and
TLG on protocols and information about
the services on Sutton Council and Veolia
and TLG websites, and signing off
campaigns Veolia and TLG are expected
to do for residents on service changes
Confirmation of contract award, update on
service changes and handover process,
and focus on accountability

Public

Public

-

Confirmation of contract award, update on
service changes and handover process,
and focus on accountability

-

Q and A with public about any service
changes

Campaigns conducted by
Veolia and TLG

-

Local Committees

-

-

Could include printed information, door
knocking, roadshows, outdoor and media
advertising
Confirmation of contract award, update on
service changes, and focus on
accountability
Promotion of Friends of groups to monitor
parks
TBC

-

TBC

Press Release and other
publicity/campaign to
mark take-over of service
Press Release and other
publicity/campaign to
mark take-over of service

Client Function
Appendix 8

Budget monitoring and management
Cross-borough performance monitoring (e.g. all KPIs that aren’t
borough specific, cross-borough review of all performance)
Liaison with boroughs on borough-specific performance monitoring
including monthly meetings
Single point of contact for the contractor for communications relating
to the Services.
Single point of contact for Contractor on Enforcement related matters
and co-ordination of work across boroughs if needed.
Co-ordination of all multi-borough communications work
Liaison with external bodies, e.g. GLA, LWaRB, EA as needed
Identifying and applying for funding opportunities
Ensuring regulatory compliance inc. permitting and H&S
Audit of Contractor’s data provision
Co-ordination of FOI responses
Market testing
Bench-marking
Monitoring total volumes of complaints and overall quality of response
Quarterly strategic meetings with Contractor
Provision of reports to JWC (or equivalent) committee
Audit and scrutiny of open book accounts
Management of payment and apportionment mechanisms
Audit of all income streams (garden waste, commercial waste, 3rd
party vehicle maintenance services, recycling material sales)
Co-ordination of service development
Manage Annual Review process
Co-ordinate borough input into Annual Review

Budget monitoring and management
Management of complaints and enquiries
Monitoring of borough-specific KPIs (e.g. missed collections)
Analysis of borough-specific data, including customer numbers and
service uptake
Street inspections and other waste and cleaning quality assurance
work
Liaison with central client including participation in monthly meetings
Provision of borough specific information to central client
Communications input and sign-off
Provision of information to support funding bids
Verification and payment of invoices
Input into annual review process
Issue winter maintenance instructions
Fleet management – purchase of vehicles
Issue fleet management instructions
Fleet works inspections and quality assurance
Environmental enforcement liaison with contractor and central client
Call centre liaison with contractor and central client
ICT interface with contractor
Borough service development

Other roles which
support the SLWP
including Phase C
Finance Lead
Legal Lead
Governance Lead

Agenda Item 3a

Borough client functions

Page 55

Partnership client functions

Agenda Item 3a

Page 56

Page 57

Agenda Item 3a

Appendix 9
List of LBS sites offered to bidders

Site

Lot

Required by Preferred Bidder?

Therapia Lane depot

1

No

Cheam Park Depot

2

Subject to Fine Tuning

Wrythe Lane Depot

2

Subject to Fine Tuning

Buildings within Manor Park

2

Subject to Fine Tuning

Buildings within Beddington
Park

2

Subject to Fine Tuning

Buildings within Grove Park

2

Subject to Fine Tuning

Buildings within Rosehill
Park

2

Subject to Fine Tuning

Buildings within Oaks Park

2

Subject to Fine Tuning

Buildings within Bandon Hill
Cemetery

2

Subject to Fine Tuning

Buildings within Sutton
Cemetery

2

Subject to Fine Tuning

This page is intentionally left blank

